# COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA PENNSYLVANIA FISH AND BOAT COMMISSION

# MINUTES FOR THE BOATING ADVISORY BOARD MEETING

Monday, February 5, 2024 10:00 a.m. Harrisburg, Pennsylvania

# **Members**

Chair Rocco Ali
Vice Chair Steven Ketterer
Scott Ballantyne
Loren Lustig
Elizabeth Winand

# **Members Ex Officio**

Timothy D. Schaeffer, Executive Director
Paul W. Littman, Director of Boating, Secretary to the Board
Ryan Dysinger for Cindy Adams Dunn, Secretary for the
Department of Conservation and Natural Resources

## **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

- I. Call to Order, Welcome and Roll Call
- II. Introduction of Guests
- III. Review and Approval of Minutes from the June and August 2023 Meetings
- IV. Election of Board Chair and Vice-Chair
- V. Public Comment
- VI. Old Business None
- VII. New Business
  - A. Amendments to 58 Pa. Code Chapter 117 (Boat rental businesses)
- VIII. Other Business
- IX. Discussion Items
  - A. Abandoned and Derelict Vessels (Sean Gimbel)
  - B. Boating Facility Grant Program Overview (Mark Morrison)
  - C. Overview of 2023 Recreational Boating Incidents (Ryan Walt)
  - D. Waves of Hope Resources (Paul Littman)
- X. Adjourn

## I. Call to Order, Welcome, and Roll Call

The meeting was called to order by Chair Scott Ballantyne at 10:10 a.m. at the Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission's (Commission) Harrisburg Headquarters. Board members in attendance included Chair Scott Ballantyne, Vice Chair Rocco Ali, Steven Ketterer, Loren Lustig, Timothy Schaeffer, Paul Littman, and Ryan Dysinger. A quorum was present.

In addition to the members of the Board, Commissioner Charles Charlesworth (Boating At-Large); Commissioner Richard Lewis (Boating At-Large); and Commissioner Donald Anderson were present, along with the following Commission staff: Laurel Anders, Senior Executive Advisor; Mark McLaughlin, Chief of Waterways and Marina Management; Mark Morrison, Statewide Public Access Program Manager; Mike Parker, Director of Communications; Tanyan Carnes, Administrative Officer for Bureau of Boating; Clyde Warner, Colonel for Bureau of Law Enforcement; Tom Edwards, Lieutenant Colonel for Bureau of Law Enforcement; Renae Kluk Kiehl, Chief Counsel; Penny Ayers, Chief of Public Access and Property Services; Katie Brashear, Director of Administration; Tigh Savercool, Chief of Licensing and Registration; Bob Caccesse, Director of Policy and Planning; Sean Gimble, Strategic Initiatives and Projects; Ryan Walt, Boating and Watercraft Safety Manager.

#### II. Introduction of Guests

Guests included: Rick Taylor, U.S. Coast Guard (USCG) Auxiliary State Liaison Officer; Koty McGowan, Executive Director for Senate Game & Fisheries Committee; Nathan Reigner, Pennsylvania Director of Outdoor Recreation; Jesse McArdell, Midwest and Northeast Policy and Engagement Manager for National Marine Manufacturers Association; Larry Cross, private citizen; and Ward Beals, private citizen.

# III. Review and Approval of Minutes from June and August 2023 Meetings

A motion was made to approve the June and August 2023 meeting minutes by Rocco Ali and seconded by Steven Ketterer. The motion carried.

#### IV. Election of Board Chair and Vice-Chair

A motion was made to nominate Rocco Ali as Chair and Steven Ketterer as Vice-Chair by Scott Ballantyne and seconded by Loren Lustig. Hearing no other nominations, Scott Ballantyne accepted a nomination from Steven Ketterer and seconded by Loren Lustig to close nominations and called for a vote to elect Rocco Ali as Chair and Steven Ketterer as Vice-Chair. The motion carried.

#### V. Public Comment

Rick Taylor, USCG Auxiliary State Liaison Officer, gave a short recap of their 2023 year. One of the USCG Auxiliary's duties is assisting in areas where towing operators aren't available. One of those areas is Lake Clarke in Lancaster and York Counties, which saw much activity last year. The USCG was involved with 41 search and rescues, 41 assists (assisting 131 people), and assisted with keeping almost \$2 million worth of property from further damage. The Auxiliary held 17 different public education classes, including sailing courses, 8-hour courses, and 14-

week in-depth courses. A total of 722 students enrolled, 704 of those successfully graduated, and 283 were 17 years of age and younger.

Jesse McArdell, National Marine Manufacturers Association (NMMA), spoke in favor of the proposed changes to Chapter 117 regarding boat rental businesses. He thanked the Commission for engaging with them and other businesses. NMMA consulted with their partners and members within Pennsylvania, who all share the same goal to enhance boaters' safety. NMMA reviewed the proposed changes and feels it's a great opportunity to increase boating safety, it meets their goals to increase boat operator education, and they do not see any issue with the suggested changes. NMMA is in full support of these changes.

#### VI. Old Business

No old business.

#### VII. New Business

A. Amendments to 58 Pa. Code Chapter 117 (Boat rental businesses). Commentary:

Boat rental businesses, also known as liveries, provide introductory experiences for newcomers to boating, convenient adventures for outdoor recreationists, and opportunities to participate in boating without the commitment of boat ownership. They also provide unique experiences such as whitewater rafting, overnight stays in houseboats, and opportunities to try the latest trends in boating technology. Boat rental operations in Pennsylvania have increased in number and expanded available opportunities in recent years. Because these businesses provide a wide variety of services to a broad diversity of people and are often a gateway to boat ownership, boat rental businesses play an important role in boating safety.

Pennsylvania law (<u>Title 30 Pa.C.S.A. § 5122(a)(2)</u>) authorizes the Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission to promulgate rules and regulations relating to boat rental business operators. The Commission's regulations relating to boat rental businesses were originally adopted in 1994 and last amended in 2003. These regulations authorize the Executive Director to provide guidance relating to boat rental orientation/introduction requirements which are posted on the <u>Pennsylvania Boat Rental Business page</u> of the Commission's website.

Waterways Conservation Officers (WCOs) have identified issues, including lack of clarity, with current boat rental regulations and guidelines. Additionally, technological advances have created specific challenges and opportunities regarding boat rental business operations. Commission staff launched a Livery Workgroup in February 2022 and initiated livery visits to identify challenges, gather information, and recommend updates to the Commission's boat rental business regulations and requirements to enhance communications and compliance, increase boating safety, and reduce conflicts on the water.

The most common challenges identified include:

- Many boat rental businesses are unknown to the Commission and, conversely, many boat rental businesses are unaware of the regulations that apply to their operations.
- Some boat rental businesses are renting boats without proper marking and/or boat registration or launch permits.
- Some boat rental business operators and their employees are not well informed of boating regulations in general and specific to the boats they are renting.
- Some boat rental business operators are not providing proper or complete safety orientations to customers.
- Boating accidents, including those that involve rental boats, require immediate notification to the Commission so that timely investigations may occur.
- Boat rental customers frequently do not carry copies of their rental agreement or safety guidelines with them during the rental period.

The Commission has three primary mechanisms to enhance boat rental business operations and improve rental boat safety: regulatory amendments, updates to the Executive Director's guidance, and proactive interactions between WCOs and boat rental business operators.

First, Commission staff have identified some immediate and timely regulatory amendments to 58 Pa. Code Chapter 117 to provide clarity and consistency for rental boat operations and ensure safe enjoyable experiences for renters. These amendments are consistent with the <u>Strategic Plan of the National Recreational Boating Safety Program 2022-2026</u>, developed by the United States Coast Guard (USCG) in collaboration with the National Boating Safety Advisory Committee. This plan contains an action item to "create a safety culture among livery operators" and related initiatives to prevent deaths and injuries of recreational boaters. Commission staff will continue to follow and, when possible, become engaged with this action item at the national level to ensure that the Commission's regulations and safety orientation guidelines are in alignment with recommendations and best practices established from this effort.

Secondly, Commission staff have identified updates to the Executive Director's guidance for rental boat educational requirements and safety orientation guidelines. These updates provide specific instructions and clarify the orientation materials, minimum information to be covered and the procedures that boat rental businesses must follow to conduct safety orientations. The updated *Boat Rental Safety Orientation Guidelines* are attached as Exhibit A.

Finally, Commission staff are drafting recommended procedures and checklists to assist WCOs with conducting annual visits with boat rental businesses to facilitate ongoing communications, share updated regulations and safety orientation resources, and proactively address operational deficiencies.

On October 11, 2023, the Commission issued a press release to invite boat rental business operators to complete a questionnaire regarding their rental business operations. Boat rental business operators were also invited to review and provide feedback on the draft regulatory amendments and safety orientation guidelines prepared by Commission staff.

All feedback was reviewed and considered as final modifications were made to the drafts before presenting the changes to the Boating Advisory Board.

Staff propose the following changes to 58 Pa. Code Chapter 117:

## § 117.1. Definitions.

The following words and terms, when used in this chapter, have the following meanings, unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

*Boat livery*—A commercial enterprise (person, partnership, corporation or other legal entity) that rents or leases rental boats to other persons for use on the waters of this Commonwealth.

Boat rental business—A boat livery.

Boat rental transaction—The exchange of consideration in the form of money, goods or services for the use of a rental boat for a period of time.

*Livery operator*—The owner or lessee of a boat livery and **[employes]** and other persons authorized to act on behalf of the boat livery.

*Rental boat*—A vessel propelled by oars, paddles, sail or power, rented or leased in this Commonwealth.

- (i) The term includes canoes, kayaks, **<u>paddleboards</u>**, inflatable boats, rowboats, sailboats, personal watercraft, and other motorboats.
- (ii) The term does not include inner tubes or similar devices not considered to be boats under this title.

#### § 117.2. Inspections.

- (a) A livery operator shall inspect its rental boats on a regular basis and shall maintain its rental boats in good repair. It is unlawful for a livery operator to rent or use a rental boat that is not in good repair and serviceable condition.
- (b) A livery operator shall permit inspection of equipment, facilities and documentation required by this chapter by a waterways conservation officer or other officer authorized to enforce the code.
- (c) A livery operator shall correct deficiencies noted by a waterways conservation officer or other officer authorized to enforce the code within 2 weeks of notification. If the deficiency involves equipment, the livery may not use the equipment until the deficiency is corrected.

# § 117.3. Responsibilities.

(a) A livery operator shall provide their business information, including business name, address, and types of boats rented, on a form provided by the Commission. If

- a change in business name, address or contact information occurs, the livery must provide an update to the Commission within 15 business days. Advertising by any means, including, but not limited to, websites, business cards, brochures, newspapers, periodicals, or billboards, that a person provides boat rentals shall be prima facie evidence of a boat livery operation.
- (b) Any livery operator or employee who conducts the required safety orientation for motorboat rentals must possess a boating safety education certificate issued by the Commission or other valid documentation specified by this title and produce it upon the request of a waterways conservation officer or other officer authorized to enforce the code.
- [(a)](c) It is unlawful for a livery operator to permit a rental boat to depart from the boat rental business without the equipment required by this title for the type of boat being rented and boat registration or use permit affixed to the boat as required by this title for the access area(s) or waterway where the boat will be operated during the rental period.
- [(b)](d) A livery operator shall [offer] provide to all persons [renting] operating rental boats an orientation/introduction to boating safety and conditions, including a review of the laws and regulations applicable to the type of boat being rented and the waters on which the boat will be used. The Executive Director will provide guidance [i]on the [preparation]content and documentation of this orientation. [Persons who produce a Boating Safety Education Certificate issued or approved by the Commission under § 91.6 (relating to certificates) are exempt from review.]
- [(c)](e) Boat rental transactions shall be made using a written agreement, specifying the name and address of the <u>boat rental business and</u> lessee, <u>the names of all individuals</u> <u>completing the required orientation/introduction to boating safety</u>, and [date of departure] the rental period. The lessee shall provide a copy of the boat rental <u>agreement upon request to a waterways conservation officer or other officer authorized to enforce the code.</u>
- [(d)](f) Livery boats shall be clearly marked on both sides for easy identification of the business. Each boat shall be marked with letters, numbers or decals at least 3 inches tall.
- [(e)](g) A livery operator shall only rent boats that meet or exceed minimum United States Coast Guard requirements for boats of that type. Rental boats shall be of a design and material suitable for their intended use.
- [(f)](h) A livery operator shall <u>notify the Commission of</u> [submit a boating accident report for] all reportable accidents involving one or more of the rental boats in accordance with Chapter 101 (relating to boating accidents). This requirement is in addition to the requirement that the operator of the boat file a boating accident report <u>in accordance with Chapter 101</u>.
- [(g)](i) It is unlawful for a livery operator to rent or use a boat in excess of its capacity as set forth by the manufacturer for the total number of passengers, total weight or maximum horsepower.
- § 117.4. Motorboat liveries.

- (a) [In addition to the requirements of § 117.3 (relating to responsibilities), a livery operator that rents boats equipped with motors greater than 25 horsepower and personal watercraft shall verify that operators of these boats either possess a permanent Boating Safety Education Certificate or have obtained a temporary Boating Safety Certificate from the livery. The Executive Director may authorize boat liveries to issue temporary Boating Safety Education Certificates, effective for the period of rental only, to operators of these boats if the boat livery and the operator comply with the requirements governing the rental of boats and the operation of boat liveries as defined in this chapter. The Executive Director will establish rules and guidelines for the issuance of temporary certificates.] Persons born on or after January 1, 1982, who rent a boat powered by greater than 25 horsepower or any personal watercraft are exempt from possessing a Boating Safety Education Certificate when the livery operator verifies the renter has completed the required orientation/introduction to boating safety and conditions in accordance with the Executive Director's guidance established by § 117.3.
- (b) A personal watercraft livery shall take measures to oversee the operation of rented personal watercraft [by persons who possess only a temporary Boating Safety Education Certificate]. These measures shall include one of the following:
  - (1) The designation of a specified [, marked] area of operation for rented personal watercraft as delineated on a map carried onboard the boat.
  - (2) The provision of qualified observers employed by the livery to directly observe the operation of rented personal watercraft and provide immediate assistance in case of an incident or breach of terms of the rental agreement. No more than seven personal watercraft may be under the observation of a single observer at any one time. Qualified observers shall be at least 16 years of age, have at least 10 hours of experience operating personal watercraft and have successfully completed the requirements for a permanent Boating Safety Education Certificate. The permanent Boating Safety Education Certificate shall be in the observer's possession when performing duties under this paragraph.
- (c) A personal watercraft livery may not lease, hire or rent a personal watercraft to or for use by a person who is 15 years of age or younger.

#### Briefer:

Laurel L. Anders, Senior Executive Advisor

#### Action:

A motion was made by Steven Ketterer and seconded by Scott Ballantyne to recommend this amendment to the Commission. The motion carried.

#### VIII. Other Business

No other business.

## IX. Discussion Items

#### A. Abandoned and Derelict Vessels

Sean Gimbel provided an overview of abandoned and derelict vessels (ADVs), which is an issue raised by key partners and stakeholders over the previous year. While there is no uniformly accepted definition for abandoned or derelict vessels, abandoned generally means the owner is unknown or has given up responsibility for a boat, and derelict means the boat has an identifiable owner but is in neglected condition.

Throughout the fall of 2023, Commission staff began efforts to define the size and scope of the ADV problem in Pennsylvania. Key to this work was a survey of the Commission's Waterways Conservation Officers (WCOs). A few highlights from the survey included: WCOs were aware of approximately 200 ADVs at the time of the survey; while ADVs can appear anywhere in PA, only about half of the WCOs indicated ADVs were present in their district; ADVs tended to be more frequent across the Commission's southern regions (SW, SC, and SE) than across the northern regions; WCO's identified over 60 specific waters or locations where ADVs either currently are a problem or are likely to be a problem. Additionally, WCOs suggested two reasons why most vessels become abandoned in PA: boats reach a point where they become too expensive for an owner to maintain or fix, and boats (usually non-powered boats) are not properly secured during storm or high-water events. Multiple WCOs expressed concern about the effort and danger involved in responding to reports of unmanned vessels, which often are the result of a poorly secured boat that becomes unmoored due to rising waters or high winds. Non-powered boats were the most common type of ADV WCOs identified closely followed by fiberglass boats.

Additional information about the extent of the ADV problem in Pennsylvania was gathered through outreach to the Department of Conservation and Natural Resources (DCNR), the Pennsylvania Game Commission (PGC), and the USCG. Much of this information aligned closely with the findings from the WCO survey.

Finally, Commission staff have begun researching ADV solutions found in states regarded as leaders in ADV removal and prevention (for example, Florida, Oregon, and Washington) to learn about specific programs and determine how applicable those programs would be to Pennsylvania.

# **B.** Boating Facility Grant Program Overview

Mark Morrison presented an overview of the Boating Facility Grant Program. The funding for the program is derived from boat registration fees, launch permit fees, state fuel tax, and various federal grants the Commission receives. Eligible project activities include property acquisitions, design and engineering, expansion and rehabilitation of existing boating facilities, and planning for further access areas. Eligible construction activities include boat ramps, parking areas, access roads, permanent restrooms, and signage. Grant funds are available to local governments (townships, boroughs, municipalities, and counties) and non-profit groups (land trusts, conservancies, watershed associations, and DCNR-designated state heritage areas). The applicants are required to provide a minimum of 50% match of the project's costs, must own or have a long-term lease for the property, keep the facility open to the public for 25 years, provide for operation and maintenance, complete the project within a two-year period, and obtain the necessary permits for construction. Since the inception of the program, the Commission has

received a total of 254 grant applications. Staff reviewed and evaluated all projects and recommended 138 for funding. The total project value of the 138 approved projects is \$31.44 million. The Commission approved \$11.33 million (36%), and the recipients provided matching funds in the amount of \$19.93 million (64%).

For the 2024 grant round that closed in December 2023, the Commission received 19 applications with funding requests ranging from \$5,000 to \$1,000,000. The applications will be evaluated and scored by the staff review team. Projects requesting more than \$100,000 will be presented to the Commissioners for approval. For the projects requesting \$100,000 or less, the team will seek approval from the Executive Director. The southeast region of the state saw the largest increase in applications, doubling the number received last year. This may have been in response to the Commission's call for projects within the Delaware River Watershed to leverage grant funding from the National Fish and Wildlife Foundation (NFWF).

The Commission's next steps will be to compile the review team's feedback and rank all projects. Pending approval, Commission staff will notify all applicants, establish a cooperative agreement for each approved project, and give notification to proceed with the project. The Commission will assist the project partners with spreading the word about completed projects once they are open for public use.

#### C. Overview of 2023 Recreational Boating Incidents

Ryan Walt gave an overview of the 2023 recreational boating incidents. A reportable boating incident is defined as either a death or disappearance, complete loss of a vessel, damage beyond \$2,000, or someone needing medical treatment beyond first aid. The Commission had 48 reportable boating incidents (collisions and capsizing being the majority) which resulted in 41 people requiring medical treatment, property damage totaling \$208,599, a total of 7 recreational fatal incidents, and 8 fatalities. Out of the 8 fatalities, one victim was wearing a lifejacket, five had none or insufficient lifejackets onboard, and two had lifejackets onboard but not worn. The incidents and fatalities of 2023 are a decrease of one from the previous year and below the last ten-year average of 11.4 victims. Pennsylvania's new ten-year average is 10.6, factoring in the 2023 fatalities, the lowest on record. The Commission has seen a long-term downward trend in both incidents and deaths since it first started recording incident data in 1988.

#### D. Waves of Hope Resources

Paul Littman provided information on Waves of Hope resources produced by the National Safe Boating Council, an organization that offers educational resources, engages in outreach, and offers boating safety training. The Waves of Hope program is designed to help victims of water-based tragedies and help provide first responders and others with assistance on what to say and how to engage. Families and friends are forever changed by open-water tragedies. In most cases, deaths are preventable. Nationally, nearly 650 people die each year during recreational boating activities. Waves of Hope is committed to preventing boating and water tragedies one wave at a time, so their stories don't become your story. They offer materials such as the 20/10/30 List, which is compiled for first responders by families of water tragedies. It includes 20 things I wish you knew, 10 things I'll never forget, and 30 helpful things to say and do. Other materials include pocket cards for WCOs and first responders to hand to the families for them to connect with Waves of Hope for support and flip booklets providing stories of the individual victims to

help spread safety awareness. To find more information, visit the Waves of Hope website at <a href="https://www.WavesofHopeBoating.org">www.WavesofHopeBoating.org</a>.

# X. Adjourn

A motion to adjourn was made by Scott Ballantyne and second by Steven Ketterer. The motion carried and the meeting was adjourned at 12:01 P.M.

#### **BOAT RENTAL SAFETY ORIENTATION GUIDELINES**

Boat rental businesses, also known as liveries, can be found at many state and county parks, along major rivers, water trails, and at some marinas, boat dealerships, and outdoor outfitters. Boat rental businesses provide introductory experiences for interested people to try boating without committing to the purchase and maintenance of boats and related equipment. Boat rental businesses also provide opportunities for experienced boaters to experiment with different types of boating or get on the water without transporting their own equipment to a new location. Some of these businesses provide unique boating opportunities like whitewater rafting. Because these businesses provide a wide variety of services to a broad diversity of people and are often a gateway to boat ownership, boat rental businesses play an important role in boating safety.

Pennsylvania law (<u>Title 30 Pa.C.S.A. § 5122(a)(2)</u>) authorizes the Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission (PFBC) to promulgate rules and regulations relating to boat rental business operators. PFBC regulations at <u>58 Pa. Code Chapter 117</u> specify rental boat business responsibilities include inspections, record keeping, required safety equipment, and accident reporting. These regulations also require rental boat businesses to provide an orientation/introduction to boating safety and conditions, as specified by the PFBC Executive Director.

This document provides specific guidance on the required boating safety and boat operations orientation to be provided by all boat rental businesses which must include:

- a review of state-specific laws and regulations applicable to the type of boat being rented,
- local conditions and known boating hazards on the waters on which the boat will be used,
- proper operations and handling characteristics of the rented boat, and
- the use of safety equipment such as life jackets, fire extinguishers and visual distress signals (if applicable).

#### **MATERIALS**

The following materials provide the <u>minimum</u> information to be covered in safety orientations. Boat rental businesses may use other materials, as appropriate, to supplement the required orientation.

- 1. PFBC posters containing Pennsylvania-specific regulations for all boat rental types are available as printer-friendly downloads at <a href="https://www.fishandboat.com">www.fishandboat.com</a>:
  - Motorboat Poster
  - Personal Watercraft (PWC) Poster
  - Unpowered Boat Poster
  - Whitewater Safety Poster
- Videos for motorboat rentals may be viewed on-demand at <a href="www.rentalboatsafety.com">www.rentalboatsafety.com</a> or <a href="https://www.youtube.com/@RentalBoatSafetyTube/videos">https://www.youtube.com/@RentalBoatSafetyTube/videos</a>. DVDs can be requested through the Rental Boat Safety website.
- 3. Spanish Speaking videos and resources can be found at https://es.rentalboatsafety.com

#### **PROCEDURES**

The following procedures shall be followed by boat rental businesses <u>each time</u> a boat is rented to <u>any</u> person for operation on Pennsylvania waters. These procedures may take up to thirty minutes to complete. Instruction may be provided in group settings.

#### <u>Unpowered Boat Rental\*</u>

- 1. Use the PFBC's posters to review the laws, regulations and boating tips relating to the proper operation of unpowered boats with <u>all</u> individuals renting or using a boat.
- Describe all known boating hazards on the waters where the renter will use the boat. Include such hazards as dams, bridge piers, shallow areas, swim areas, obstructions in the water, slowno-wake areas, docks, piers, boating access areas, areas of heavy motorboat traffic, and other areas to exercise caution or avoid.
- 3. Provide all required safety equipment in accordance with the PFBC's regulations and explain its proper use.
- 4. Obtain a signed and dated acknowledgment of all individuals completing the orientation/introduction to boating safety and conditions as outlined in steps 1 through 3 above.
- 5. *Optional:* Show the relevant unpowered boat video at <a href="www.rentalboatsafety.com">www.rentalboatsafety.com</a> to orient renters to proper operations and boat handling.
- 6. *Optional:* Use the <u>USCG/RentalBoatSafety</u> paddling checklist to ensure important safety topics are covered with the renter.
- \*Unpowered boat rental businesses operating in Pennsylvania under an agreement with the National Park Service and in compliance with the Commercial Use Authorization (CUA) Safety Orientation Requirements meet the requirements outlined above.

#### **Motorboat Rental**

- 1. Use the PFBC's posters to review the laws, regulations and boating tips relating to the proper operation of motorboats with all individuals renting or using a boat.
- 2. Show the relevant powerboat video at <a href="www.rentalboatsafety.com">www.rentalboatsafety.com</a>.
- 3. Provide hands-on orientation of proper operations and boat handling specific to the boat being rented.
- 4. Identify the designated area of operation, if applicable.
- 5. Describe all known boating hazards on the waters where the renter will use the boat. Include such hazards as dams, bridge piers, shallow areas, swim areas, obstructions in the water, slowno-wake areas, docks, piers, boating access areas, areas of heavy motorboat traffic, and other areas to exercise caution or avoid.
- 6. Provide all required safety equipment in accordance with the PFBC's regulations and explain its proper use.
- 7. Obtain a signed and dated acknowledgment of the renter's completion of the motorboat rental orientation/introduction to boating safety and conditions as outlined in steps 1 through 6 above.
- 8. *Optional:* Use the relevant <u>USCG/RentalBoatSafety</u> powerboat checklist to ensure important safety topics are covered with the renter.

Boat rental businesses are encouraged to require life jacket wear at all times on rental boats, even when not required by state or federal law.

Questions about the Boat Rental Safety Orientation Guidelines may be directed to: Pennsylvania Fish and Boat Commission, Bureau of Boating, 717-705-7851, RA-FBBOATRENTAL@pa.gov